
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: April 2, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 1 of 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The Workshop Meeting of the West Milford Township Council was called to order by Mayor Bettina Bieri. 
 
Adequate Notice Statement 
Mayor Bieri read the following statement: 
Please note that in accordance with Chapter 231, Public Laws of 1975 of New Jersey, adequate advance 
notice of this Workshop meeting was advertised in the Herald News in its issue of January 6, 2008; copies 
were provided to the Suburban Trends, the Record, Star Ledger, and Greenwood Lake News and posted 
continuously on the bulletin board in the main corridor of the Town Hall and on file in the Office of the 
Township Clerk. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Bieri led all in attendance in a salute to the flag. 
 
Roll Call 

 
Present:  Councilmembers Philip Weisbecker, Joseph Smolinski, Robert Nolan, 

Marilyn Lichtenberg, Carmelo Scangarello.  Mayor Bettina Bieri. 
Absent:  Salvatore Schimmenti. 
Also Present:   Interim Township Administrator and Township Clerk Antoinette Battaglia,  

from the office of Township Attorney Frederick Semrau, Dominic DiYanni. 
 

Agenda No. II 
Reading of or Approval of Unapproved Minutes 
 
Councilman Nolan moved to adopt the minutes of the February 20, 2008 Special Meeting as presented. 
 
Moved:   Nolan   Seconded:  Lichtenberg 
Voted Aye:   Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Abstained: Weisbecker. 
Motion carried. 
 
Councilman Nolan moved to adopt the minutes of the February 23, 2008 Executive Session Minutes as 
presented. 
 
Moved:   Nolan    Seconded:  Scangarello 
Voted Aye:   Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Abstained: Weisbecker. 
Motion carried. 
 

Agenda No. III 
Meetings 
 
Mayor Bieri noted the future meeting schedule: 
 
April 9, 2008 Regular Meeting   April 23, 2008 Workshop Meeting 
May 7, 2008 Regular Meeting   May 14, 2008 Workshop Meeting 
 

Agenda No. IV 
Presentations 
 
Vacation of Parlin Court – Joseph Affinito, Esq. – Mr. Affinito explained that this was a request for 
permission to install piping for a septic under the roadway, not a vacation.   He distributed maps that 
showed Parlin Court, and explained that Mr. and Mrs. Otten owned the property on either side.  This road 
only exists on paper and his clients intend to install their septic on vacant land with the piping installed on 
the right of way.  The Zoning Board has granted a variance conditioned upon appearing before Council 
for permission.  Township Clerk Battaglia stated that if the Council was amenable that Township Attorney 
Semrau would prepare a licensing agreement for the applicant to sign which would include a hold 
harmless agreement as well as require proof of insurance to the Township which would substantiate and 
support this.  Council consensus was to proceed.    
 

Agenda No. V 
Proclamations 
None. 
 

Agenda No. VI 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: April 2, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 2 of 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Public Comments 
 
Mayor Bieri opened the meeting to the public after advising that there is a five-minute limit for each 
speaker.  She invited interested parties to raise their hand and come forward when called upon.  
 
Martin O’Shea, 10 Lakeshore Road E., Stockholm, NJ -  stated that the news of his death was greatly 
exagerrated and apologized for disappointing many people.  He asked who was in charge and 
responsible for the Township website.  He said that the Council of 2004 was the first Council under the 
new form of Township government and, that in his opinion, most of them suffered under delusions of 
adequacy.  The agenda was different than today, whereby there were two opportunities for the public to 
speak at each meeting.  The first opportunity was at the beginning of the meeting, and a later comment 
period giving the opportunity talk about business that had been transacted and things that had been said.  
He came to every meeting in 2004 and never spoke.  He further stated that they changed and removed 
the second Public Comment period because the Council was being addressed so frequently by residents.  
They inserted into the agenda Council Comments at the beginning of the meeting and Council Reports at 
the end of the meeting.  This allowed for Council members to take cheap shots at people who spoke 
earlier.  He stated that elected officials must listen to people who oppose them and that their suggestions 
and comments don’t have to be acted on but that they must be listened to.  He suggested that the Council 
drop the Council Comments and reinstitute at the end of the meeting another Public Comment segment.  
He said that a good model would be the West Milford Board of Education.   
 
Joann Jordan, 27 Dover Road – expressed that she is disturbed about what she heard tonight about Lot 5 
between Parlin Court and Dover Road.  She lives at the end of Dover Road and borders park land 
property.  She is concerned that 10 Parlin Court (Lot 5) could potentially lose the deeded access to their 
property because of Parlin Court being vacated.  They currently access their property via park land.  She 
does not want any one specific homeowner to benefit from this vacation. If the road were ever to be 
improved, 10 Parlin Court might lose their access. Additionally if the park land was made inaccessible to 
them, they would be unable to access their property. She said that it is not right for one family to own the 
road. 
 
Stan Frey, 27 Dover Road – said that he has been addressing Parlin Court since 1996.  He said that all of 
the facts have not been presented and in as much as he did not come prepared this evening he will come 
back when the vote is ready to be taken.   
 
There being no more comments from the public Councilman Nolan moved to close the public portion of 
the meeting. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Smolinski    Seconded:  Weisbecker 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Agenda No. VI 
 
Council Comments 
 
Councilman Weisbecker – clarified for Mr. O’Shea that petitions and requests on the agenda used to be 
at the beginning of Council Meetings with public comments at the end of the meeting.  He said that the 
petitions and requests were prearranged.  He agreed that it was a good formula and that it kept people 
involved.  Early speakers were planned and prepared and at the end of the meeting anyone could 
comment on the meeting and what had transpired.  
 
Council President Smolinski – asked Dominic to comment on Parlin Court and clarified that 10 Parlin 
Court is lot 5. 
 
Mr. DiYanni – explained that Township Attorney Semrau recommended a licensing agreement rather than 
a vacation of the road.  He said that the agreement simply allows pipes to be laid underground and it 
would have provisions.  Ownership of the road will not change.  Mayor Bieri accepted to hear the 
concerns of a homeowner who fears that at some time the road may need to be improved and the pipes 
underground would hinder this.  Township Clerk Battaglia explained that this began as a vacation request 
and through the process, concerns of all parties became evident.  All parties involved have been heard 
and the agreement is a result of addressing the residents concerns as well as accommodating the need 
for a septic for 7 Parlin Court.  Mr. DiYanni acknowledged that it would be a deeded to the property and 
not the homeowner.   
 
Councilman Nolan – stated that previously he and former Councilman Warden had suggested a second 
comment period on an agenda last year.  He agrees that this would give a chance to the public to weigh 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: April 2, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 3 of 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
in on any actions or inactions that transpired during the meeting.  He would favor a second comment 
period.  He is also in favor of council interaction. 
 
Councilwoman Lichtenberg – agreed that she would not have any objections to a second comment 
period. 
 
Township Clerk Battaglia – in response to the question of the Township website explained that the 
website is provided and supported by Citinet.  Each department has modules in various areas which they 
can access to post announcements and updates.  There is no single employee who oversees all 
departments.  
 
Mayor Bieri – stated that she is aware there were two comment periods in the past.  She supports two 
comment sessions, the first as a general comments to express concerns and the second as response to 
Council actions.  The Council reports allow Council members to report on certain matters whereas 
Council comments are to address the questions and concerns of those in attendance and are in response 
to Public comments.  She asked that this be an agenda item for a future Workshop meeting.  
 
Action Items 
 
The Township Council took action on the following items: 
 

Agenda No. VIII 1 
 

~ Resolution 2008- 148 ~ 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, STATE OF NEW 

JERSEY ACCEPTING THE BIDS FOR THE SALE OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL LANDS AND 
PROPERTIES FROM THE TOWNSHIP AUCTION OF MARCH 5, 2008 

 

 WHEREAS, on March 5, 2008, the Township of West Milford conducted the sale of municipal 

properties no longer needed by the Township in accordance with Resolution #2008-102; and 

 WHEREAS, the Interim Administrator/Clerk reports that the attached schedule outlines the 

bidders and their respective proposals to purchase said lands and recommends that the Township 

Council accept these bids. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Council of the Township of West 

Milford that the proposals set forth in the attached schedule are hereby accepted and incorporated herein.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the terms of such acceptance will be set forth in the Contracts 

of Sale to be prepared by the Township Attorney as set forth in Resolution #2008-102. 

 This Resolution shall be effective immediately. 

Adopted:  April 2, 2008 

Discussion: - no discussion  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker   Seconded:  Nolan 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Agenda No. VIII 2 
 

~ Resolution 2008- 149 ~ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, STATE OF NEW 

JERSEY AUTHORIZING THE BOARDING UP OF A FIRE DAMAGED, UNINHABITABLE STRUCTURE 
AND PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF COSTS OF SAME 

 
 WHEREAS, the West Milford Fire Department and the West Milford Police Department of the 
Township of West Milford have ordered the boarding up of a building at 424 Lakeshore Drive, Hewitt, NJ 
07421, Block 2018 Lot 1, owned by Gary Moore Jr. and Fatima Correia as a result of dangerous and 
uninhabitable conditions due to fire damage; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Gary Moore Jr. and Fatima Correia, the owners of these premises, have failed to 
comply with said orders within the period permitted by law; and 
 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: April 2, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 4 of 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:48-2.3 et seq., the Township is authorized to make 
necessary repairs or take steps to abate conditions dangerous to the public welfare and place the cost of 
same as a lien upon the land; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the cost of completing the necessary boarding up of the building has been certified 
to the Township Council as $685.00. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of 
West Milford, in the County of Passaic and State of New Jersey, that the appropriate Township officials 
were authorized to effectuate the boarding up of the building to abate conditions dangerous to the public 
welfare of the uninhabitable premise at 424 Lakeshore Drive, Hewitt, NJ 07421, Block 2018 Lot 1, and an 
amount of $685.00 is hereby certified as the costs of same; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Township Clerk shall present this Resolution 
to the Tax Collector who shall proceed to collect the foregoing as provided by law. 
 
Adopted:     April 2, 2008 
  
 
Discussion: - no discussion        
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker   Seconded:  Scangarello 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

******************** 
Agenda No. IX 

Appropriation of Expenditures 
None. 

 
Agenda No. X 

Items For Discussion 
 
The Township Council discussed the following items: 
1)  Ordinance – Lake Commercial Zone – Interim Administrator Battaglia stated that on June 

12, 2007 the Planning Board recommended to Council that there be an amendment to this 
particular zone.  She has put this on the agenda for Council to either introduce or return to 
the Planning Board.  Mayor Bieri said that Planning Director Drew is scheduled before 
Council in April or May and that perhaps he can address this at that meeting.  Councilman 
Weisbecker commented that it had already been worked on and put forward by the 
Planning Board and that it was sat on by the then Township Administrator.  He said that 
there are many explanations addressing the zone and that it addresses expanding the 
permitted use list.  This has nothing to do with water quality.  It considers certain uses that 
would not be good in a Lake Commercial Zone.  It is spelled out in the Planning Board 
report and just needs an Ordinance.  Mayor Bieri disagreed and said that there are 
unanswered questions and that it could be sent back to the Planning Board to have it 
reviewed.  Councilwoman Lichtenberg noted that it mentions that service stations and 
contractor storage would be strictly prohibited.  She asked if this would also include any 
type of company who may have vehicles coming and going which contain materials 
detrimental to lakes and if not, how would this be classified?  Councilman Scangarello 
commented that an example would be a homeowner receiving a home heating oil delivery.  
He agrees with Councilman Weisbecker.  Councilman Nolan has concerns and feels that 
both Council and the Planning Board continue to ignore the issue.  He said that at some 
time zoning needs to be addressed regarding adult businesses and that the Lake 
Commercial Zone does not prohibit this type of business. He feels that it should be 
returned to the Planning Board and not be rushed through.  Mayor Bieri stated that the 
Ordinance has waited 10 months and would agree with Councilman Nolan.  She agrees 
that with the current wording an adult business would be categorized as a direct service 
and would be allowed.  Regarding allowing an adult business in the Township, Councilman 
Nolan stated that Council cannot continue to ignore that problem.  Mayor Bieri said that 
she would like to hear from Planning Director Drew and see maps which would clarify 
where this Ordinance would have effect.  Councilman Weisbecker said that an Ordinance 
could always be amended.  Councilman Smolinski commented that it does not expand the 
Lake Commercial Zone, it just enhances it and does not know how adult businesses 
became a part of this.  He feels that Council should look into having a designated zone to 
allow adult entertainment.  Mayor Bieri said that this proposed ordinance has prohibited 
uses and asked why adult businesses not be added.  Councilwoman Lichtenberg added 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: April 2, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 5 of 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
that the prohibitions are meant to be because of water quality.  Mayor Bieri clarified that 
this Ordinance can add adult businesses as a prohibited use because the focus is to draw 
attention to the lake and that the Township would not want adult entertainment in that 
zone.  Councilman Smolinski said that he would not have a problem with adding adult 
entertainment as being prohibited but is concerned that too many items before Council 
languish and that this Ordinance should not have been ignored for so long.  He added that 
Planning Director Drew has recommended the Ordinance as it is written.  Councilman 
Smolinski furthered by saying that clarification should be made, added into the Ordinance 
and then the Ordinance moved.  Councilman Nolan questioned that if the Ordinance is to 
improve the quality of the lake then why does it have hotels and motels.  He asked if there 
were a limit on the number of rooms.  He stated again that he feels the new Planning 
Board should revisit this, but give them a time limit of 60 days so that it can be moved on 
as quickly as possible.  Councilman Weisbecker stated that he feels that the Ordinance 
should not be sent back to the Planning Board.  His contention is that all of the delays with 
it being brought before Council were due to the then Township Administrator not 
presenting it.   He feels that the Planning Board has quite a bit to address already. This 
Ordinance is only to expand permitted use and the Planning Board has already done its 
work on this.  He asked that separately, the Planning Board identify areas where adult 
entertainment can be allowed and have them report back to Council.  He would lilke to see 
the Township Attorney present an Ordinance and put it on the agenda.  Mayor Bieri said 
that since it has sat for 10 months it is not urgent.  She said to clarify, the previous 
administration may not have addressed this but her administration is not afraid to bring 
things to the table. However if there is the potential for amendment to this Ordinance, it 
should be done right the first time.  She stated that there is nothing wrong with the 
Ordinance but that it might be made better.  She noted that there had been two memos 
from the Planning officials which address this Ordinance as being water quality issues.  
Mayor Bieri asked for Council consent to invite Andy Gargano, Planning Board Chairman, 
to speak.  He said that the agenda for their meeting taking place on April 3, 2008 was light 
and that the Workshop agenda was also light.  He feels that there is sufficient time for them 
to review this Ordinance.  Mayor Bieri asked if this can be added to the Planning Board 
agenda for the April 3

rd
 meeting.  Mr. Gargano said yes and that he felt the review could be 

done within a month.  He said that the new Planning Board has not reviewed this and that 
it would be not problem for them to review.  Councilman Smolinski said that he did not 
want this to languish for long and would like to have it back to Council for the next 
Workshop Meeting.  Mayor Bieri asked for a motion to either send it back to the Planning 
Board or to move forward as it currently reads.  Councilman Weisbecker stated that the 
previous Planning Board has already done a good job and that it is ready to introduce at 
the next meeting.  Councilman Nolan stated that the new Planning Board take a look at it.  
Councilwoman Lichtenberg asked that the Planning Board review and have their opinion 
back to Council in 30 days.  Councilman Scangarello feels it is ready to be moved on and 
Councilman Smolinski is ready to move. Mayor Bieri said that with the consensus being to 
move, it will be introduced at the April 9, 2008 meeting with adult entertainment prohibited.  
She furthered to say that a memo be sent to Planning requesting that the Planning Board 
address the zoning for adult entertainment.  Mr. DiYanni advised that even with adult 
entertainment being prohibited, a variance could always be applied for.   

2)  Ordinance – Auxiliary or Honorary Members in Fire Companies – Interim Township 
Administrator Battaglia advised that this Ordinance was requested by the Township Fire 
Companies and was distributed to the Fire Chiefs Association and they requested 
introduction.  Council consensus was to introduce the Ordinance. 

3) Ordinance – Amendment to Major Soil Fill Permit Escrow – Interim Township Administrator 
Battaglia explained that this Ordinance is to amend the current escrow account.   There 
have been many applications and the Townships current escrow account does not cover 
the need.  Council consensus was to introduce the Ordinance. 

4)  Ordinance – Amending Fence Ordinance – Interim Township Administrator Battaglia told 
the Council that this amendment was recommended by the Planning Board.  
Councilwoman Lichtenberg referred to a memo from Township Planning Director Drew 
suggesting that the Building Standards board review this.  Interim Township Administrator 
Battaglia explained that this Ordinance originated in 2007 as a result of a neighborhood 
dispute.  At that time, it was determined that bad legislation allowed for the fence that was 
in dispute.   Mayor Bieri stated that this amendment is too vague to be enforced and that it 
was highly discretionary and too arbitrary, stating that it does not address who can make 
the determination and enforce it.  Mr. DiYanni agreed and said that he believed that 
Township Attorney Semrau felt that the amendment is arbitrary and capricious.  He feels 
that it needs further clarification and standards set forth.  Mayor Bieri asked if it could be 
referred back to the Planning Board.  Councilman Smoliniski suggested that no fluorescent 
colors be permitted and also showed concern regarding signs.  Council consensus was to 
move the Ordinance back to the Planning Board.  

5)  Ordinance – UGL Encroachment on POA Property – Interim Administrator Battaglia stated 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: April 2, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 6 of 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
that this Ordinance was the result of a meeting between the Upper Greenwood Lake 
Property Association and Township officials and Township Attorney Semrau.  She said that 
apparently when permits are granted by the Township there have been occasions when 
neighboring property has been encroached upon.  This Ordinance would require 
notification to the Property Owners Association prior to any work being started that may 
encroach on anothers property.  Councilman Nolan suggested that the Ordinance state 
that the Property Owners Association be required to respond back to the applicant with any 
objections within 14 calendar days and that no response would be assumed as an 
affirmative response.  Council consensus was to proceed. 

6) Ordinance – Background Checks – Township Employees & Contractors – Mayor Bieri said 
that this Ordinance was for the purpose of obtaining feedback.  Interim Administrator 
Battaglia said that feedback has been received by the Township Guild as well as the two 
unions represented in the Township.  The unions were consistent that current employees 
not be required to fund their background check.  The Guilds concerns apply to current 
employees and is substantiated by a number of reasons.  One reason being that they feel 
that the current employees did not have a background check as a condition of 
employment.  Another reason dealt with Statue 33.26 which refers to offenses found in the 
background check.  There currently is no clarification as to what they are and they want the 
statute clarified.  She said that there are three separate background check Ordinances on 
the agenda which were put forward by the past Administrator and the Director of 
Community Services and Recreation.  Coincidently, all have come to fuition at the same 
time.  Councilman Nolan stated that he supports background checks as a requirement for 
future employment and that any employee who works with children require a background 
check.  He does not agree that the employee should pay.  He went on to mention that the 
Insurance committee meets in April and that he would like their input.  Councilman 
Smolinski commented about three separate items concerning background checks being 
addressed at this meeting.  He said that each one stands alone.  He asked where the 
concept of employee background checks came from.  He said that he does not have any 
problems with the current employees because some are bonded, those who drive 
equipment are licensed and drug tested.  However, he feels that any employee who works 
directly with children should be checked and that background checks be required as a 
condition of employment in the future.  Councilman Scangarello said that because of the 
Community Services and Recreation department employees having exposure to children 
and senior citizens everyday they are background checked already.  Councilman Nolan 
stated that the NJ State Police report form says that any records received shall be used for 
reasons obtained and should not be distributed to those unauthorized.  Concern is that the 
information obtained not be considered under the Open Public Records Act. Consensus 
was to move this to the Insurance Committee for their recommendation.    

7) Ordinance – Background Checks – Volunteers & Employees of Volunteer Groups – 
Councilman Smolinski stated that this is of concern throughout the volunteer community.  It 
has been talked about for years.  He said that sports organizations would like the  
Township to pay for the first background check.  He furthered by saying that the Board of 
Education performs background checks for all employees once a lifetime.  However if 
some violation occurs they are notified.  He asked that this be looked into because it is 
long over due, however it will be costly.  Mayor Bieri stated that this is not just for sports 
groups but any organization which uses Township facilities. Councilman Smolinski stated 
that a number of townships already have a background check policy in place and that once 
up and running it will be easy to maintain.  At this time all the major organizations in the 
Township agree that this is necessary.  He said that grants are available for this purpose.  
Councilman Nolan asked if the background checks would be enforced through the 
Department of Community Services and Recreation and if records would be kept there.  
Councilman Smolinski said that this is also one of his questions as to who has access to 
and is responsible for maintaining records.  Councilman Nolan said that he is okay with the 
Township initially paying for the background checks.  Mayor Bieri said she would like to 
change section (d) saying that the organization bears the expense.  33-35 section (c) says 
that the checks take place annually and would need to be changed to every three years.  
Councilman Smolinski asked that the Council reconsider the references to rehabilitation.  
13-37 needs to determine who the person making the determination is.  Councilman 
Smolinski has concerns about determining the extent of the violation.  Interim Administrator 
Battaglia said that she would be willing to get clarification on 33-34A.  Mayor Bieri 
requested that Mr. DiYanni look into a number of the points of the Ordinance, i.e. 31-33(b) 
to determine who will take on the task; 33-33(d) regarding costs; 33-35 (c) surrounding 
frequency of the background checks.  She also asked if there were anyone else who would 
be able to review the Ordinance and further questioned the exact definition of Affirmative 
Rehabiliation.    Councilman Nolan asked if the CFO be advised of this potential policy so 
that he can include it into the budget. Consensus was to get further clarification and to 
move forward. 

8) Ordinance – Background Checks for Youth Clientele-based Businesses – Councilman 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: April 2, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 7 of 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Smolinski explained that this Ordinance originated from the rape charges which 
surrounded the Iron Tiger, a martial arts business in the Township.  He said that the 
philosophy is the same as other background checks.  Because of this, a lot of interest has 
been generated.  An Ordinance such as this might possibly promote business in West 
Milford.  Parents are comforted by businesses who subject employees to background 
checks.  He asked for consensus to send this out to various organizations for their input.  It 
requires more scrutiny but that this is a starting point.  He said that the Chief of Police 
expressed concerns and questions regarding career criminal history.  Mayor Bieri asked 
whether or not this moves forward, it would not have prevented the incident in West Milford 
and stated that the person accused of this violation was a police officer from another 
Township.  She feels that it is groundbreaking with wonderful intent but she is not sure if it 
is legal or constitutional especially as currently written.  Her suggestion was to make this 
more of a volunteer program where anyone who complies could get a certificate.  This 
would avoid lawsuits and promote a good practice.  If it were to be a voluntary program, it 
could also be expanded to include seniors.   Councilman Smolinski said that the phrase 
“direct contact” would need to be defined.  He would like to see an Ordinance pursued.  Mr. 
DiYanni agrees with Mayor Bieri that there are some issues that may subject the Township 
to attack.  This would be the first Ordinance of this type in the state.  It would be innovative 
and groundbreaking.  However, there may be scutiny and attack.  There may be protective 
claim arguments regarding discrimination etc.  The Township will need to take precautions 
against giving an establishment a certificate or license.  Mayor Bieri asked that if a draft is 
going to be sent to the Chamber of Commerce, should we present this as an option?  
Councilman Smolinski suggested to send it as is and ask for comments back.  He also 
suggested sending it to the Board of Education for distribution to the PTA’s and PTO’s.  

9) Ordinance – Fees for Marriage and Civil Union Ceremonies – Mayor Bieri stated that this 
was on the agenda at her request.  It is standard in other communities to charge fees, 
payable on issuance of the marriage license for the Mayor’s services.  Interim 
Administrator Battaglia clarified that fees can be charged for the Mayor’s services but no 
fees can  be charged if a Township Judge performs the ceremony.  Mr. DiYanni said that 
there are Ordinances in other towns which allow for a fee to be paid to the Mayor for any 
ceremony but Mayor Bieri said that she wishes the fee collected be put into a Township 
account.  Councilman Nolan asked if the language referring to a Deputy Mayor and other 
officials should be removed.  It was decided that it should remain.   

10)  Ordinance – Clarifying Commercial Vehicle Access to Municipal Compost Facility 
11) Selection of Volunteer of the Year – Councilwoman Lichtenberg commented that there are 

a number of people in the Township who deserve this award.  She exampled Edwin 
Rodda, a 60 year employee of the Township, citing that he still, after retiring, continues to 
volunteer his time to the Registrars office of Town Hall.  Councilman Nolan stated that his 
first reaction was to nominate Raymond Barrett, but perhaps the Mayor may want to 
consider him for next year as a lifetime volunteer.  He agrees with Councilwoman 
Lichtenberg that all nominations are worthy.  He furthered that he felt that Bob Kochka was 
a worthy recipient as he has spent numerous hours volunteering for the betterment of West 
Milford.  Council voted in majority to award the Volunteer of the Year Award to Mr. Edwin 
R. Rodda.  

12) Council Priorities – Interim Administrator Battaglia explained that the list which was 
included in the Council members packets was a list of items that had been kept regarding 
subjects to be discussed at workshop meetings.  She noted that some items have “rolled 
right through” and that the list included is what has been created through these meetings.  
Mayor Bieri asked Ms. Battaglia what it was that she was looking for from the Council at 
this time. She replied that Councilman Nolan suggested that the Council address priorities.  
Councilman Nolan asked if the list needs to be addressed in its entirety at this meeting.  He 
commented first on the Personnel Manual which Ms. Battaglia explained was in the hands 
of the Personnel Administrator and was being modeled to the JIF sample.  She is eager to 
have this completed in a timely fashion, with the intent to adopt the sample with minor 
changes to suit the Township.  Councilman Nolan went on to remind the Council that there 
were a number of items on the list which are of importance to move forward with.  It was 
agreed by the Mayor and Council that each member email to Ms. Battaglia, by April 9, their 
individual top 10  items and that Ms. Battaglia will then compile a list for the Council to 
review. 

13) Resident request to purchase Right-Of-Way on Greendale Drive – Interim Administrator 
Battaglia explained that this was a request from a resident to purchase Greendale Drive 
because of a septic encroachment to Township right of way.  A recommendation was 
received from Township Enginner McFadden which was sent to Township Attorney 
Semrau and Mr. Semrau has generated the memo which is before Council.  He agrees to 
grant a temporary easement with conditions.  If council is amenable this would move 
forward for an action item at the next meeting.  Mayor Bieri said that she is amenable. 
There were not other comments and consensus was to move forward. 

14) Resident request to remove water tanks from Township Property – Interim Administrator 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: April 2, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 8 of 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Battaglia stated that a resident had contacted the Township regarding tanks that were on 
Township property.  There were concerns over the aesthetics and the safety of the tanks.  
This resident had explained that there was a local business owner who said that they 
would remove the tanks. Township Department of Public Works Director Storms had 
looked into the cost of the Township removing the tanks vs. the scrap value and it was 
decided that the cost to remove would exceed the value.  She was recommending that the 
Council allow for this private business to remove the tanks providing that there is proof of 
insurance and a hold harmless agreement.  Consensus was to move forward. 

15) Resolution to Submit and Accept Recycling Tonnage Grant – Interim Administrator 
Battaglia explained that this is an annual application, however the figures are not in yet. 
She said that it will be necessary to take action at next weeks meeting as the application is 
due back by the 30

th
 of the month.  Consensus was granted. 

16) Resolution Supporting Improvements and Repairs to Rail Services that Traverses West 
Milford – Interim Administrator Battaglia told the Council that a letter had been received 
from the New York, Susquehanna and Western Rail Road Company citing that they need a 
Resolution from the Township which will authorize them to seek grant funding to repair 
existing lines that run through West Milford.  It was agreed that letters from the Township, 
the Police Department and the Rescue Squad should be sent to the rail road which 
address the safety of the tressel at Canistear Road. These could be included with the 
Resolution if it is not time sensitive.  Interim Administrator Battaglia said that she would 
contact them to determine the deadline of the Resolution which would then determine if 
they would address the company’s requirements as well as the need of the Township.  
Consensus was granted.   

17) Resolution to Authorize 2007 Agreement – Passaic County Open Space & Farmland 
Preservation Trust Fund – Rehabilitation of West Brook Park – Interim Administrator 
Battaglia told the Council that an agreement had come in which was sent to Township 
Attorney Semrau and that it was his recommendation to submit the agreement to the 
Council for Resolution.  Consensus was given. 

18) Resolution - Bond Anticipation Notes – Interim Administrator Battaglia said that there was a 
memo in their packets from Township Finance Director Magnotti recommending a 
Resolution to recognize Bond Anticipation Notes.  He explained in the memo what Bond 
Anticipation Notes are and explained that they would be long term debt.  Consensus was 
to move forward. 

19) Bid - Ridge Road Repairs – Interim Administrator Battaglia explained that bids had been 
received on February 20 and that the lowest bidder was Crossroads Construction.  She 
explained that in the past they had awarded to this company and that the company proved 
to be less than productive.  Township Attorney Semrau has advised to award to the 2

nd
 

lowest bidder which is Schenley Construction.  Consensus was to move forward. 
20) Bid – Hydraulic Hammer Services – Interim Administratror Battaglia told Councilman Nolan 

that she had not been able to contact Township Engineer McFadden  regarding the 
questions that he had.  Councilman Nolan explained that his contention was that the 
Township, each year, spends about $50,000 to rent this equipment.  He was entertaining 
the idea of putting before Council at a later date the purchase of one and asked Ms. 
Battaglia to request records from Mr. McFadden of the number of hours used, the cost to 
rent as well as the cost to purchase.  Consensus was to put this item forward but to check 
into purchasing the equipment for future use.  

21) RFPs - Auditor 
******************** 
Agenda No. XI 

Reports 
 
Interim Administrator Battaglia– informed the Mayor and Council that there was a memo on the dais 
regarding items which had come up after compiling the Council packets.  The first was that the Township 
Tax Collector will be proceeding with item #28 on the foreclosure list and needs to get the tax sale 
certificates.  A Resolution will be on the agenda for the next meeting.  Additionally she spoke about the 
one site bus at Bubbling Springs which was intended to house children in inclement weather.  This has 
not been successful and Councilman Smolinski has said that the Upper Greenwood Lake Fire 
Department might want the vehicle for maneuvers and when completed would return to the Township any 
money which may be received for the scrap.  She has contacted Township  Department of Public Works 
Director Storm to ascertain if the vehicle has any value to the Township and his response was that it did 
not have value other than scrap at about $600.00.  She is seeking Council consensus to junk title the 
vehicle and give it to the UG L Fire Department.  She also said that CASA has submitted a request to 
apply for three grants which would require a contribution from the Township.  The total of the three grants 
is $3030 and the Township match would be $757.50.  If amenable to the Council she will seek a 
Certificate of Funds from the Township CFO and draft a Resolution for consideration at the next meeting. 
Council consensus was to move forward with all three items. 
 
 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: April 2, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 9 of 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Councilman Nolan – spoke about NJ Assembly Bill 1265 that deals with funding for libraries.  The bill 
permits the Library Board to transfer funds to the Municipality for tax relief under certain conditions.  It has 
passed the Assembly and the Senate and is waiting for the Governor to sign.  He asked for the Mayor to 
address this at the next Library Board Meeting stating that the Library has over $1 million in surplus.  He 
feels that the citizens of West Milford would benefit by getting some of that money.  
 
Councilwoman Lichtenberg – commented that many residents who have underground oil tanks do not 
realize that they can leak and that they are uninsurable.    
 
Councilman Scangarello – said that he had received a Thank You letter from the residents of Goldfinch 
Lane commending the Department of Public Works, Gerry Storms and a DPW operator.  He asked that 
Interim Administrator Battaglia investigate a situation whereby residents of Upper Greenwood Lake have 
received both Planning and Zoning Board Permits to build a Pavillion.  He said that ironically, a Township 
Inspector, after all permits have been issued has decided to contact the State and that this is now 
delaying progress.  He then asked the Mayor and Council to put for the next Executive Meeting the 
discussion of the Hillcrest property lease. 
 
Councilman Weisbecker – spoke regarding the vacation of Ricker and asked that Township Attorney 
Semrau discuss this with the Township Planning Director.  Apparently there are a number of deeds that 
have Right of Way to Ricker and that it may not be what it appears.  Interim Administrator Battaglia said 
that she has been in contact with an attorney and various department heads regarding this.  He 
expressed concern regarding item #21 of the discussion list that addresses Massage Therapy.  He said 
that this is a profession and that the Planning Board had heard an application this past week for a 
business that deals with different forms of exercise as well as massage.  He has a problem with that 
because there have been instances with problems in the Township.  He asked that massage therapists 
be required to provide their licenses.  He asked that Township Attorney review the Ordinance in place in 
Butler, NJ.  He said that he has received a letter from the Tennessee Pipe Line saying that they are in the 
process of putting together new routes and that there is already an easement through West Milford.  The 
agreement allows West Milford to use some of the gas.  He asked that the agreement be reviewed.  He 
said that the Passaic County Mosquito Control is gearing up but that there has been no disclosure as to 
where they will be spraying.  He would like to know what their plan is.  He commented on funding that is 
available for bike paths and that the Township should continue to apply.  He asked Interim Administrator 
Battaglia to contact the Engineering Department regarding this.      
 
Council President Smolinski – no report  
 
From the Office of Township Attorney, Dominic DiYanni – reported that Township Attorney Semrau will 
provide an update on Random Woods and the corner at Greenwood Lake Tpke. at the next meeting.  He 
said that he will also be discussing impending personnel matters in the Executive Session.  It was 
recommended by the Council that he also be prepared to discuss the Hillcrest School lease. 
 
Mayor Bieri – commented that prior to Passaic County treating mosquitos they notify residents.  
Regarding the applicant for the massage parlor, the applicant must provide proof that the massage 
therapists are licensed.  She stated that the proposed facility is quite different that the business on Route 
23. 
 
Councilman Scangarello – advised that there is a vacancy on the Municipal Utilities Authority committee.  
He said that Jim Burns was an alternate member and suggested to nominate him to a full time member.  
Councilman Smolinski seconded the suggestion .  Council consensus was to draft a Resolution to be 
presented at the next meeting.   
 

 

 
Agenda No. XII 

Appointments and Resignations 
 
None. 

Agenda No. XIII 
Executive Session 
 
None. 

******************** 
Agenda No. XIV 

Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, the Township Council adjourned the meeting 
at 10:13 p.m. 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: April 2, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 10 of 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker                           Seconded:  Nolan 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Approved:   May 28, 2008 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted:                                                                 _________________________________ 

MAYOR BETTINA BIERI 
PRESIDING OFFICER 

 
Judy Manning, Part-time Secretary 
 

________________________________ 
ANTOINETTE BATTAGLIA 

TOWNSHIP CLERK 
 
 


